
 
MEASURE M 

COC/TOC AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, January 26, 2010 

5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
 

 Orange County Transportation Authority 
600 S. Main Street, Orange, CA 

Conference Room 506 
 

Conference room is directly in front of the elevator on the 5th floor.   
 

 
1. Review and approve minutes from December 8, 2009 
 
2. External Auditor Communications/Annual Financial 

Audits 
 
3. Combined Transportation Funding Program Audits 

 

 
 

 
Marc Davis, Partner

Mayer Hoffman McCann PC

Kathleen O’Connell

4. Other Matters 
 
5. Public Comments*  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Agenda listings are intended to give notice to members of the public of items of business to be 
transacted or discussed.  The Audit Subcommittee may take any action which it deems appropriate on an 
agenda item. 
 
*Public Comments:  At this time, members of the public may address the Audit Subcommittee regarding 
any items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Subcommittee provided that NO action may be 
taken off-agenda items unless authorized by law.  Comments shall be limited to five (5) minutes per 
person and 20 minutes for all comments, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to 
the approval of the Subcommittee. 



MEASURE M 
COC/TOC AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

Minutes 
 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 S. Main Street, 600 Building 

Orange, CA 
Conference Room 506 

Tuesday, December 8, 2009 
5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

 
 
• COC/TOC members present:  Hamid Bahadori, Howard Mirowitz, Jim Kelly, Gregory 

Pate, Vivian Kirkpatrick-Pilger, David Sundstrom 
 
• OCTA staff present: Ken Phipps, Kathleen O’Connell, Andrew Oftelie, Janet Sutter, 

Alice Rogan, Roger Lopez   
 
 
Meeting was called to order at:  5:05pm. 
 
Review and approve minutes from October 13, 2009:   Minutes from the October 
meeting were approved unanimously as written. 
 
Quarterly Measure M Revenue and Expenditure Report:  Ken Phipps, Executive 
Director of Finance and Administration, reported on the quarterly Measure M1 Revenue 
and Expenditure Report for September, indicating there were few expenditures and a 
continued decline of sales tax figures. During the quarter ending September 2009, 
$44 million in sales tax revenue was received, as compared to $60.5 million during the 
quarter ending June 2009, and $54.4 million during the quarter ending September 2008.  
 
The most significant item in the report was on Schedule 3, within the Freeway mode. 
This report includes a revision to the estimate at completion on the SR-57 project. 
$22 million which had been programmed with M1 funds has been reversed.  The project 
will once again be funded with M2 funds. With this change, there is currently a positive 
unprogrammed balance within the Freeway mode of $13 million, where the June 2009 
report reflected a negative balance. An amendment to the M1 Expenditure Plan to 
reflect this change is currently in process. 
 
There was $1 million in close-out activity for the Garden Grove freeway, and very light 
expenditures on all other freeway projects for the last quarter. The largest expenditures 
for last quarter were $5 million for light rail, and $11 million spent in support of the 
Metrolink expansion program. Ken summarized that the biggest concern is the 
continuing decline in sales tax revenues. 
 
Sales Tax Update:  Ken next discussed the Sales Tax Update, indicating again that 
sales tax revenue continues to decline. The November advance is 30 percent less this 



fiscal year than what it was in November 2008. The most recent projection from the 
State Board of Equalization indicates a decrease in the rate of decline, a leveling out in 
the first quarter of the calendar year, then a slight increase in the second quarter. 
However, actuals through November do not support this projection. Ken distributed a 
presentation that Muni Services would be giving to the Finance and Administration 
Committee regarding sales tax trends as a whole. The presentation compares city by 
city within the county, different market segments, the percentage of the overall tax they 
make up, and the trend in that segment. Ken pointed out the second line-graph of the 
presentation which showed the plight of the auto industry. The auto industry is a large 
generator of sales taxes, and has experienced a significant decline in sales. The last 
two pages of the presentation show how on a quarterly basis sales tax per capita rapidly 
declined. Most alarming is the final page that looks back historically at two prior 
recessions and what sales tax behavior was after the recession ended. In those cases, 
we were in an era of positive sales tax growth during the recession, and then after the 
end of the recession, sales tax growth turned negative quarter to quarter with continuing 
declines for about a year. In this current period, we have been in an era of negative 
sales tax performance during the recession. If consideration is taken that the recession 
is supposedly over, and we’re in a period of recovery, then history indicates a period of 
lingering sales tax declines after a recession. The projected rapid recovery is somewhat 
suspect. November actuals indicate a continued increase in the rate of revenue decline. 
Ken believes the unprogrammed balance in the freeway mode will be revisited going 
forward, and further adjustments will have to be made. Each of the universities is 
forecasting a recovery, but Ken thinks the actual experience as it has been every month 
for the past couple years show actuals are coming in significantly lower than the 
university forecasts. 
 
Combined Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) Project Close-out:  Roger 
Lopez, Section Manager of Strategic Planning, provided the Committee with an update 
of the current status of Measure M1 CTFP projects that are pending or are planned for 
the next 14 months.  Roger was made aware of the Committee’s concerns regarding 
the amount of pending allocations, which are projects that the cities have completed but 
have not submitted reports for.  Current guidelines require that final documentation be 
filed within a 180 day period. Roger said this situation has been of concern during the 
last year and the Board of Directors has been addressed regarding this matter. On 
August 18, 2009, Will Kempton sent letters to each city that had a pending project, 
advising them of projects that they had advised us were completed, but for which a final 
report had not yet been submitted. The letters have had the desired effect, and many 
cities have been prompted to action as a result. Roger’s staff has been following up 
individually with each city regarding projects. Roger said a semi-annual review is 
underway, however final figures won’t be tallied until completion of the last semi-annual 
review. Cities are now doing what is required to get projects completed. One thing that 
has been discussed internally is that under current guidelines, final documentation is 
required to be submitted within 180 days, however there are no consequences or 
process by which OCTA can take punitive action when cities do not comply with the 
guidelines.  
 
Guidelines have been changed going forward, pending approval by the Board of 
Directors, to set out specific steps the cities must follow. Cities will have to notify OCTA 
when they are ready to submit a notice of completion on their project.  OCTA’s system 
will then track and send up a flag after 120 days and send the city a reminder. A second 



reminder will be sent to the city at 180 days reminding them that time has lapsed and 
they must submit documentation.  If there is no response 30 days after that, an invoice 
will be sent to the city billing the total allocation. If the city needs additional time in 
excess of 180 days because of unforeseen events, the city will be required to address 
the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for approval.  The city will have to justify why 
they cannot meet the 180 day timeline. Hamid Bahadori asked about the March 
deadline, to which Roger responded that a semi-annual review is done in March and 
September. The Board of Directors approved elimination of delay requests. Come 
March, cities will be required to deliver the project or cancel it. 
 
Recommended Revisions to Draft M2 Eligibility Guidelines:  Alice Rogan advised 
the committee that Item 5 on the TOC Audit Subcommittee meeting agenda had been 
delayed on the Board of Directors calendar. Andrew Oftelie, Manager of Financial 
Planning and Analysis, gave a brief update of three issues that have been raised 
through audits in the last few months that either the TOC or the Finance and 
Administration Committee requested clarification on. One was use of interest as in the 
case of the City of Fullerton; two, what information had to be included in capital 
improvement plans; and three, whether or not you could  borrow  against turnback 
revenues.  
 
Language in the draft M2 eligibility guidelines gives clarification to these issues.  
Andrew will provide to the Committee the language that will be included in the M2 
eligibility guidelines to address these issues. Generally speaking, guidelines for Local 
Fair Share revenues follow Article 19 rules, which allow up to 25 percent of project costs 
to go towards debt. This will be in the M2 eligibility guidelines as well. Guidelines will 
also state that interest earnings have to be expended in the same time period as Local 
Fair Share funds. Cities will have to have separate accounts, and the accumulated 
balance in the accounts cannot equal more than the sum of three years of turnback 
funds allocations. 
 
Measure M Local Jurisdiction Questionnaire for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009:  
Janet Sutter, Section Manager of Internal Audit, indicated that questionnaires had been 
sent to all local jurisdictions, as well as a request for single audit reports and 
management letters. The questionnaire process is only done every two years. Janet 
pointed out on the last page of the questionnaire there is a question asking cities to 
outline turnback revenues received in the last three years, revenues expended and 
interest earned, and the balance in the fund. Andrew added that as part of the new 
Ordinance, all cities will be required to give us an annual expenditure report. Janet 
continued that they also asked cities to identify projects that were not listed in the CIP 
plan for which they had expenditures, and to indicate why.  Discussion then ensued 
regarding the M2 Triennial Review 
 
Draft Audit Charter of the TOC Audit Subcommittee:  Kathleen O’Connell, Director of 
Internal Audit, discussed the draft audit charter which she would be presenting to the full 
TOC following the Audit Subcommittee meeting. Kathleen incorporated some of the 
Committee’s comments into the document, but essentially the draft is the same as was 
presented to the Committee at the last meeting. Chairman David Sundstrom asked for a 
motion to approve the charter. A motion was made, seconded, and the charter was 



approved unanimously. Howard inquired about Item’s 3 and 5 under the Internal Audit 
and Internal Controls section, and asked what committee members actually do to 
implement these items. Kathleen replied that Item 1 will allow for Committee members 
to have an indication of the effectiveness of the internal control system. Any concerns 
Committee members may have will be communicated to the full Board of Directors. 
Committee members implement Item 5 by weighing in if the reporting lines should 
happen to change 
 
External Financial Audit Status:  Janet relayed that the annual financial audit draft 
reports were currently under review.  The LTF and STAF reports have been issued, and 
Janet expects all reports to be issued by the end of December. At this time, the Finance 
and Administration Committee meeting dates are not definite, but Janet believes the 
earliest date the reports will be presented to the Finance and Administration Committee 
will be January 27th, and to the Board of Directors in February. The reports will then be 
presented to the Audit Subcommittee at the meeting after the Board of Directors 
meeting. Jim Kelly requested that reports be provided to the TOC Audit Subcommittee 
members before they go to the Finance and Administration Committee in order to have  
sufficient time to review the reports before reporting back to the full TOC. The Audit 
Subcommittee agreed to reschedule the next meeting until January 26th, and Janet 
agreed to forward the reports ahead of that meeting to allow sufficient time for review. 
 
Other Matters:  None 
 
Public Comments:   None 
 
Meeting Adjourned at:   6:02 p.m. 
 
Next meeting scheduled for January 26, 2010, at 5:00 p.m. in CR 506. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Orange County Local Transportation Authority 

(A Component Unit of the Orange 
County Transportation Authority) 

 

A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  A N D   
C O M P L I A N C E  R E P O R T  

 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
 

 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority) 

 

Audited Financial Statements 

 

 Year Ended June 30, 2010 

 
 
 

Contents 

 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report ............................................................................................................................ 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  ............................................................................................................. 3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 Government-wide Financial Statements: 
 Statement of Net Assets ........................................................................................................................ 9 
 Statement of Activities ........................................................................................................................ 10 
 Governmental Funds Financial Statements: 
 Balance Sheet ...................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds 
 to the Statement of Net Assets .................................................................................................... 12 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances .............................................. 13 
 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
 in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities .................................. 14 
 Notes to the Financial Statements ............................................................................................................. 15 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Other than Management’s Discussion and Analysis): 
 Local Transportation Authority Special Revenue Fund 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) ........................................................................... 32 
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information ........................................................................................ 33 
 
Other Supplementary Information: 
Local Transportation Authority Debt Service Fund 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) ........................................................................... 34 
 
Other Reports: 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
 Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ..................................................... 35 
 
 



1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and 
each major fund of the Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), a component 
unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2010, which collectively comprise the OCLTA’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of OCLTA’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
OCLTA as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position of the OCLTA for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as management’s discussion 
and analysis and required supplementary information are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.  However, we did not 
audit the information and express no opinion on it. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the OCLTA’s basic financial statements.  The budgetary comparison 
schedule for the Local Transportation OCLTA Debt Service Fund is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The budgetary 
comparison schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.   
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors  
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 

 2 
 
 

 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
October 27, 2010 on our consideration of the OCLTA’s internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Irvine, California 
October 27, 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
 
June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 
 
 

 3 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

 
As management of the Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), we offer readers of 
the OCLTA’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the OCLTA’s Measure M 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  We encourage readers to consider the 
information on financial performance presented in conjunction with the financial statements that begin 
on page 9.  All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.    

Financial Highlights 

• Total net assets of the OCLTA were $464,280 and consisted of net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt, of $169,853 and restricted net assets of $294,427. 

 
• Beginning net assets were restated $27,058 due to sales tax revenue not accrued for in the prior 

fiscal year and revenues recorded in the prior fiscal year that were not available to finance 
current year expenditures (see note 10).  Net assets decreased $49,954 during fiscal year  
2009-10.  This decrease was primarily due to program costs in excess of sales tax revenue and 
unrestricted investment earnings.  

  
• Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, were $169,853 at June 30, 2010. 

 
• The OCLTA’s governmental funds were restated $25,195 due to sales tax revenue not accrued 

for in the prior fiscal year and revenues recorded in the prior fiscal year that were either not 
available to finance current year expenditures or were not available for reimbursement (see  
note 10).  OCLTA’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$368,913, a decrease of $132,741 from the prior year.  This decrease is primarily due to the I-5 
gateway project, the continued effort to complete the Combined Transportation Funding 
Program (CTFP) with cities due to the upcoming conclusion of the Measure M1 program and 
the Metrolink Service Expansion Program (MSEP). 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the OCLTA’s basic financial 
statements, which are comprised of three components including government-wide financial statements, 
fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains required 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.  Because the OCLTA is a 
governmental activity of the Orange County Transportation Authority, governmental funds are used to 
account for its Measure M program activities.  The basic financial statements include only the activities 
of the OCLTA.   
 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
 
June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 
 
 

 4 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
OCLTA’s finances using the accrual basis of accounting, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the OCLTA’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between assets and liabilities reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the OCLTA is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the OCLTA’s net assets changed during 
the fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.   
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9-10 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with Measure M finance-related legal requirements.  The OCLTA uses governmental funds. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements; however, governmental fund financial statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources and on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating the OCLTA’s  
near-term financing requirements. 
 
Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  As a 
result, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the OCLTA’s near-term financing 
decisions.  Both the governmental funds balance sheet and related statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The OCLTA maintains two individual governmental funds which are considered to be major funds.  
Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the related 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the OCLTA’s major 
governmental funds. 
 
The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 11-14 of this report. 
 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
 
June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 
 
 

 5 

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 15-31 of this report. 
 
The OCLTA adopts an annual budget for its two funds.  A budgetary comparison schedule has been 
provided for the LTA special revenue fund as required supplementary information on page 32 and the 
LTA debt service fund as other supplementary information on page 34 to demonstrate compliance with 
the annual appropriated budget.  

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted previously, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the OCLTA’s financial 
position.  At June 30, 2010, the OCLTA’s assets exceeded liabilities by $464,280, a $49,954 decrease 
from June 30, 2009.  Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets 
(Table 2) of the OCLTA’s governmental activities. 
 
Approximately 37% of OCLTA’s net assets reflect its investment in capital assets, the majority of which 
is land purchased for right-of-way.  The increase of $3,010 in net assets invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt was primarily due to the purchase of land for the MSEP. 
 
Restricted net assets, which are resources subjected to external restrictions on how they may be used, 
decreased $52,964 from June 30, 2009.  This decrease is primarily due to program costs in excess of 
sales tax revenue received offset by the restatement previously mentioned (see note 10). 

  
Table 1 

Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Net Assets 

 
 Governmental Activities 

 
 2010 2009 
   
Current and other assets, as restated $  505,702 $  556,480 
Restricted assets 73,069 72,602 
Capital assets, net 169,853 166,843 
  Total assets, as restated 748,624 795,925 
 
Current liabilities 

 
201,534 

 
120,462 

Long-term liabilities 82,810 161,229 
  Total liabilities 284,344 281,691 
   
   



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
 
June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 
 
 

 6 

 2010 2009 
Net assets:   
 Invested in capital assets, net of   
  related debt 

 
169,853 

 
166,843 

 Restricted, as restated 294,427 347,391 
  Total net assets, as restated $464,280 $514,234 

 

Governmental activities decreased the OCLTA’s net assets by $49,954.  Sales taxes, which ultimately 
financed a significant portion of the OCLTA’s net costs, decreased by $43,299, or 16%, from the prior 
year as a result of a significant downturn in the economy.  This decrease includes the prior period 
adjustment of $27,757 (see note 10).  Operating grants and contributions increased $33,811, or 135%, 
from the prior year primarily due to reimbursements related to the contribution to SCRRA for the 
MSEP and grade crossing projects.   
 
OCLTA expenses of $305,024 shown on the statement of activities consist of: 
 

Supplies and services  $ 51,388 
Contributions to other local agencies   193,355 
Infrastructure   50,220 
Depreciation expense   66 
Interest expense   7,771 
Transfer to Caltrans 50 
Transfer to other OCTA funds 2,174 
 Total expenses  $305,024 

 
Total expenses increased $80,987, or 36% from the prior year primarily due the I-5 gateway project, the 
continued effort to complete CTFP projects and the MSEP. 

 
Table 2 

Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Changes in Net Assets 

 
 Governmental Activities 
 2010 2009 
Revenues:   
Program revenues:   
 Charges for services $  434 $  353 
 Operating grants and contributions, as restated 34,060 249 
 Capital grants and contributions - 19,757 
General revenues:   
 Taxes, as restated 221,855 265,154 
 Unrestricted investment earnings 13,002 23,474 
Total revenues, as restated 269,351 308,987 
   



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
 
June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 
 
 

 7 

Financial Analysis of the OCLTA’s Funds 

As of June 30, 2010, the OCLTA’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$368,913, a decrease of $132,741 compared to 2009.  This decrease includes the restatement of the 
ending fund balance (see note 10).  The total amount constitutes reserved fund balance to indicate that 
it is not available for new spending because of the following commitments: 
 

• $1,682 deposited with the State for condemnation deposits; 
• $1,174 other noncurrent assets; 
• $68,481 to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the current and prior periods; 
• $109,655 to pay debt service on Measure M sales tax revenue bonds issued in prior years to 

accelerate funding for Measure M projects; and 
• $187,921 for transportation programs related to Measure M projects. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 
 
As of June 30, 2010, the OCLTA had $169,853, net of accumulated depreciation, invested in a broad 
range of capital assets including land, buildings, and machinery and equipment.  A summary of the 
OCLTA’s Measure M capital assets, net of depreciation, follows:   

 
Land  $ 169,014 
Improvements 1,086 
Machinery 26 
Total capital assets 170,126 
Less accumulated depreciation   (273) 
Total capital assets, net  $169,853 

Total capital assets increased $3,010 or 2%, from the prior year primarily due to the purchase of land 
for the MSEP.  More detailed information about the OCLTA’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 to 
the financial statements. 
 
OCTA has outstanding construction contracts, the most significant of which is $96,949 for Metrolink 
railroad grade crossing enhancement and safety improvements.  

 2010 2009 
Expenses:   
 Measure M program 305,024 224,037 
 Indirect Expense Allocation 14,281 10,388 
Increase/(decrease) in net assets, as restated (49,954) 74,562 

Net assets – beginning 514,234 439,672 
Net assets—end of year, as restated $464,280 $514,234 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
 
June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 
 
 

 8 

Debt Administration 
 
As of June 30, 2010, the OCLTA had $182,795 in sales tax revenue bonds and commercial paper notes 
outstanding.  All sales tax revenue bonds mature by 2011 when the OCLTA authority to collect the 
local sales tax expires.  In fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA issued $50,000 in Renewed Measure M 
commercial paper notes and retired $78,405 of sales tax revenue bonds. 
 
The OCLTA maintains a “AAA” rating from Standard & Poor’s, a “AA” rating from Fitch and a “Aa2” 
rating from Moody’s for its Measure M 1st Senior Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and a “AA” rating from 
Standard & Poor’s, an “AA-” rating from Fitch and a “Aa3” rating from Moody’s for its Measure M 2nd 
Senior Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.  
 
Additional information on the OCLTA’s short-term debt and long-term debt can be found in Notes 7 
and 8 to the financial statements, respectively. 

Economic and Other Factors 

The OCLTA represents the Measure M (M1) half cent sales tax which has delivered on promises made 
to the residents of Orange County in 1990, with over $4 billion invested in improvements to freeways, 
streets and roads and transit.  As M1 sunsets on March 2011, the collection of sales tax under the 
Renewed Measure M (M2) Investment Plan will officially get underway in April 2011.  M2 was 
overwhelmingly approved by the voters of Orange County in 2006 because of the tangible results that 
were realized through M1.  The passage of M2 will allow for the continuation of transportation 
improvements for 30 years.  In an effort to expedite transportation projects, the OCTA Board approved 
the M2 Early Action Plan (EAP) in 2007, paving the way for financing projects in 2007 through 2012.  
Under the EAP, five M2 freeway projects are scheduled to be under construction before revenues are 
collected in 2011. 

 
The OCLTA adopted its 2011 annual budget on June 14, 2010.  This $588.1 million balanced budget 
includes both M1 and M2.  The M1 budget totals $348.4 million and includes payments to cities and 
the County of Orange for the turnback and competitive programs, significant investment in the MSEP, 
Measure M debt service payments, and right-of-way acquisition and construction costs for the I-5 
Gateway project completed in October 2010.  The M2 budget totals $239.7 million and includes funds 
for the grade separation projects, grade crossing and quiet zones, environmental mitigation and work 
related to several freeway projects that have been identified in the Board-approved EAP.   

Contacting the OCLTA’s Management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the OCLTA’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the OCLTA’s finances and to demonstrate OCLTA accountability for the money it 
receives.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
information should be addressed to the Finance and Administration Division of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority, 550 South Main Street, P.O. Box 14184, Orange, California  92863-1584. 
 



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2010

Governmental
( t h o u s a n d s ) Activities

Assets

Cash and investments $ 431,633                
Receivables:

Interest 1,385                    
Operating grants 2,207                    
Other 13                         

Due from other governments 60,926                  
Condemnation deposits 1,682                    
Restricted cash and investments 73,069                  
Other assets 1,233                    
Assets held for resale 6,623                    
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 169,014                
Depreciable, net 839                       

Total Assets 748,624                

Liabilities

Accounts payable 22,465                  
Accrued interest payable 1,755                    

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

Due to other OCTA funds 184                       
Due to other governments 55,530                  
Unearned revenue 14,060                  
Other liabilities 21                         
Advance from other OCTA funds 7,519                    
Commercial paper notes 100,000                
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 82,810                  

Total Liabilities 284,344                

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets 169,853                
Restricted for:

Measure M program 184,772                
Debt Service 109,655                

Total Net Assets $ 464,280                

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

9



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

Statement of ActivitiesStatement of Activities

E 30 20 0Year Ended June 30, 2010

Net RevenueNet Revenue
d Ch  iand Changes ing

Program Revenues Net AssetsProgram Revenues Net Assets
I di O iIndirect Operatingp g
Expense Charges for Grants and GovernmentalExpense Charges for Grants and Governmental

E All i S i C ib i A i i i( t h o u s a n d s ) Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Activitiesp

Program governmental activities:Program governmental activities:

Measure M program $ 305 024   $ 14 281     $ 434          $ 34 060         $ (284 811)        Measure M program $ 305,024   $ 14,281     $ 434          $ 34,060         $ (284,811)        

Total governmental activities $ 305 024   $ 14 281     $ 434          $ 34 060         $ (284 811)        Total governmental activities $ 305,024   $ 14,281     $ 434          $ 34,060         $ (284,811)        

General revenues:General revenues:

Sales ta es 221 855         Sales taxes 221,855         
Unrestricted investment earnings 13,002           Unrestricted investment earnings 13,002           

Total general revenues 234,857         Total general revenues 234,857         

Change in net assets (49 954)          Change in net assets (49,954)          

Net assets - beginning  as restated 514 234         Net assets - beginning, as restated 514,234         
$Net assets - ending $ 464,280         Net assets  ending $ 464,280         

S     h  f l See accompanying notes to the financial statements.p y g

10



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010,

LTALTA
D b T lDebt Total

( t h o u s a n d s ) LTA Service OCLTA( t h o u s a n d s ) LTA Service OCLTA

AssetsAssets

Cash and investments $ 395 203             $ 36 430               $ 431 633             Cash and investments $ 395,203             $ 36,430               $ 431,633             
R blReceivables:

Interest 1 229                 156                    1 385                 Interest 1,229                 156                    1,385                 
O  2 207                                      2 207                 Operating grants 2,207                 -                     2,207                 p g g , 7 , 7
Other 13                      -                     13                      Other 13                      -                     13                      

f h 6 6 6 6Due from other governments 60,926               -                     60,926               g ,9 ,9
Condemnation deposits 1 682                 -                     1 682                 Condemnation deposits 1,682                 -                     1,682                 

d h dRestricted cash and investments:Restricted cash and investments:
Cash equivalents -                     44 453               44 453               Cash equivalents -                     44,453               44,453               
Investments -                     28,616               28,616               Investments                      28,616               28,616               

Prepaid assets 1 174                 -                     1 174                 Prepaid assets 1,174                 -                     1,174                 

Total Assets $ 462 434             $ 109 655             $ 572 089             Total Assets $ 462,434             $ 109,655             $ 572,089             

Liabilities and Fund BalancesLiabilities and Fund Balances

LiabilitiesLiabilities

Accounts payable $ 22,465               $ -                     $ 22,465               Accounts payable $ 22,465               $ -                     $ 22,465               
D  t  th  OCTA f d 184                                         184                    Due to other OCTA funds 184                    -                     184                    
Due to other governments 55,530               -                     55,530               Due to other governments 55,530               -                     55,530               
D f d 17 431                                    17 431               Deferred revenue 17,431               -                     17,431               
Other liabilities 21                      -                     21                      Other liabilities 21                      -                     21                      
Ad  f  h  OCTA f d 7 519                                      7 519                 Advance from other OCTA funds 7,519                 -                     7,519                 
Commercial paper notes 100,000             -                     100,000             Commercial paper notes 100,000             -                     100,000             
I  bl 26                                           26                      Interest payable 26                      -                     26                      p y

203 176                                  203 176             Total Liabilities 203,176             -                     203,176             , ,

Fund BalancesFund Balances

Reserved for:Reserved for:
Condemnation deposits 1 682                                      1 682                 Condemnation deposits 1,682                 -                     1,682                 
Other assets 1,174                 -                     1,174                 Other assets 1,174                                      1,174                 
Encumbrances 68 481                                    68 481               Encumbrances 68,481               -                     68,481               
Debt service -                     109,655             109,655             Debt service                      109,655             109,655             
Transportation programs 187 921                                  187 921             Transportation programs 187,921             -                     187,921             

T t  F  B e 259 258             109 655             368 913             Total Fund Balances 259,258             109,655             368,913             

$ 462 434             $ 109 655             $ 572 089             Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 462,434             $ 109,655             $ 572,089             

S  i  t  t  th  fi i l t t tSee accompanying notes to the financial statements.

11



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2010

( t h o u s a n d s )

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (page 9) are different because:

Total fund balances (page 11) $ 368,913                

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 169,853                

Assets held for resale are not a financial resource and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 6,623                    

Other long-term assets related to cost of issuance are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 59                         

Earned but unavailable revenue is not available to liquidate current liabilities 
and, therefore, is deferred in the funds. 3,371                    

Interest payable on bonds outstanding is not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. (1,729)                   

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

12

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (82,810)                 

Net assets of governmental activities (page 9) $ 464,280                

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

12



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2010

LTA
Debt Total

( t h o u s a n d s ) LTA Service OCLTA

Revenues

Sales taxes $ 221,855                $ -                        $ 221,855                
Contributions from other agencies 31,269                  -                        31,269                  
Interest 12,219                  783                       13,002                  
Miscellaneous 3,117                    -                        3,117                    

Total Revenues 268,460                783                       269,243                

Expenditures

Current:
General government 65,459                  151                       65,610                  
Transportation:

Contributions to other local agencies 193,355                -                        193,355                
Capital outlay 54,302                  -                        54,302                  
Debt service:

Principal payments on long-term debt -                        78,405                  78,405                  
Interest on long-term debt and 

commercial paper 403                       9,018                    9,421                    

Total Expenditures 313,519                87,574                  401,093                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
    over (under) expenditures (45,059)                 (86,791)                 (131,850)               

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 5,241                    87,428                  92,669                  
Transfers from OCTA 1,283                    -                        1,283                    
Transfers out (87,428)                 (5,241)                   (92,669)                 
Transfers to OCTA (2,174)                   -                        (2,174)                   

Total other financing sources (uses) (83,078)                 82,187                  (891)                      

Net change in fund balances (128,137)               (4,604)                   (132,741)               

Fund balances-beginning, as restated 387,395                114,259                501,654                

Fund balances-ending $ 259,258                $ 109,655                $ 368,913                

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Governmental Funds

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

13



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2010

( t h o u s a n d s )

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 10) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 13) $ (132,741)               

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation and amortization expense.  This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 4,016                    

Transfer of the completion of the SR-22 HOV project to Caltrans (50)                          

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving the sale of 
land held for resale is to decrease net assets. (2,683)                   

Deferred revenues received in the current year are reported as revenues in the funds
and not reported in the statement of activities. 1,508                    

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes

(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

14

governmental funds, while the repayment of principal of long term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect
of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 79,996                  

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 10) $ (49,954)                 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

14



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority) 

 
Notes to The Financial Statements 

 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 

(in thousands) 

 
 
 
 

15 

 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Reporting Entity 

In November 1990, Orange County voters approved the Revised Traffic Improvement and Growth 
Management Ordinance, known as Measure M.  This implemented a one-half of one percent retail 
transaction and use tax to fund a specific program of transportation improvements in Orange County.  
The Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) is responsible for administering the 
proceeds of the Measure M sales tax program.  The original Measure M Program (M1) commenced on 
April 1, 1991 for a period of 20 years.  Under M1, funds are required to be distributed to four modes:  
freeways, regional streets and roads, local streets and roads and transit.   

On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters approved the renewal of Measure M for a period of 30 
more years from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2041.  Renewed Measure M (M2) allocates funds to 
freeway, street and road, transit and environmental improvements. 

On June 20, 1991, under the authority of Senate Bill 838, the Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA) was formed as a special district by merging several agencies and funds, including the OCLTA, a 
component unit of the OCTA.  Accordingly, the OCLTA’s financial activities are included with the 
financial activities of OCTA for financial reporting purposes. 

The OCTA governing board (Board) consists of 17 voting members and functions as the OCLTA 
governing board.  Measure M requires that an eleven-member Taxpayer’s Oversight Committee (TOC) 
monitors the use of Measure M funds and ensures that all revenue collected from Measure M is spent 
on voter-approved transportation projects. 

These financial statements include only the activities of the OCLTA, a component unit of the OCTA.  
These financial statements are not intended to present the activities of OCTA. 

Basis of Presentation 

The OCLTA’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement 
of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed 
level of financial information. 

Government-wide Statements:  The statement of net assets and the statement of activities 
report information on all of the OCLTA.  The effect of significant interfund activity has been removed 
from these statements.  The OCLTA provides only governmental activities which are supported 
principally by sales taxes. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the OCLTA Measure M program expenses 
are offset by program revenues.  Program expenses include direct expenses, which are clearly identifiable 
with Measure M, and allocated indirect expenses.  Interest expense related to the sales tax revenue 
bonds and commercial paper is reported as a direct expense of the Measure M program.  The 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

16 

 

borrowings are considered essential to the creation or continuing existence of the Measure M program.  
For the year ended June 30, 2010, interest expense of $7,771 was included as Measure M program costs.  
Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from services or privileges provided by Measure M; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of the Measure M program.  Taxes and other items, 
which are properly not included among program revenues, are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the 
OCLTA’s governmental funds.  The OCLTA considers all of its Measure M funds as major 
governmental funds.  They are comprised of the following: 

• Local Transportation Authority (LTA) Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for 
revenues received and expenditures made for the implementation of the Orange County Traffic 
Improvement and Growth Management Plan.  Financing is provided by a one-half percent sales and 
use tax assessed for twenty years pursuant to Measure M, which became effective April 1, 1991, and 
was recently renewed for an additional 30 years from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2041.  The 
Measure M ordinance requires that sales tax revenues only be expended on projects included in the 
ordinance.  A decision to use the revenues for any other purpose must be put to the voters in 
another election. 

• LTA Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments 
made for principal and interest on long-term debt of the OCLTA. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met.   

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as 
they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  
For this purpose, the OCLTA considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 180 days of 
the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred; however, 
principal and interest expenditures on long-term debt of governmental funds are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf 
of the OCLTA, intergovernmental revenues and interest revenue.  In applying the susceptible-to-accrual 
concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are essentially two types of revenues.  In one, monies must 
be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the OCLTA; 
therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures incurred.  In the other, monies are 
virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed requirements.  
These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier if the susceptible-to-accrual 
criteria are met. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

17 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the OCLTA’s policy to use 
restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Cash and Investments 

The OCLTA maintains cash and investments in a pool with other OCTA cash and investments and in 
accordance with the Annual Investment Policy (AIP) adopted by the Board on May 8, 1995, and most 
recently amended April 26, 2010.  The AIP complies with, or is more restrictive than, applicable state 
statutes.  Separate investment manager accounts are maintained for the proceeds of bond issues, with 
the earnings for each bond issue accounted for separately.  Pooled cash and investment earnings are 
allocated based on average daily dollar account balances. 

Investments in U.S. government and U.S. agency securities, repurchase agreements, variable and 
floating rate securities, mortgage and asset-backed securities, and corporate notes are carried at fair value 
based on quoted market prices, except for securities with a remaining maturity of one year or less at 
purchase date, which are carried at cost.  Certain investment agreements are carried at cost while others 
are carried at fair value.  Treasury mutual funds are carried at fair value based on each fund’s share 
price.  The Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP) is carried at fair value based on the value of each 
participating dollar as provided by the OCIP.  The state-managed Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
is carried at fair value based on the value of each participating dollar as provided by LAIF.  Commercial 
paper is carried at amortized cost (which approximates fair value). 

The AIP requires that assets in the portfolio consist of the following investments, with maximum 
permissible concentrations based on book value, and is more restrictive than applicable state statutes for 
the following cases:  

OCTA Notes and Bonds (25%) 

Commercial paper (25%) 

• Must be rated by two of the three rating agencies at the following level or better:  P-1 by 
Moody’s Investor Service (Moody’s), A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S & P) or F-1 by 
Fitch Ratings (Fitch). 

• Must be issued by corporations rated A- or better by S & P, A3 or better by Moody’s or A- or 
better by Fitch, with further restrictions to issuer size.  

• Maximum Term: 180 days. 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (30%) 

• Must be issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or state or federal association, or be a 
state licensed branch of a foreign bank, which has been rated by at least two of the Nationally 
Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations. 

• The issuer must have minimum credit ratings of A-1 by S & P, P-1 by Moody’s, F1 by Fitch. 

• Maximum Term: 270 days. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

18 

 

Bankers Acceptance (30%) 

• Must be rated by at least two of the Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations with  
minimum credit ratings of A-1 by S & P, P-1 by Moody’s, F1 by Fitch and may not exceed the 
5% limit by any one commercial bank.  

• Maximum Term: 180 days. 

Mortgage or Asset-Backed Securities (20%) 

• Must be rated AAA by S & P, Aaa by Moody’s, or AAA by Fitch. 

• The issuer must have an A or better rating by S & P, A2 or better by Moody’s or A or better by 
Fitch or an equivalent rating by a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization 
recognized for rating service for its long-term debt. 

• Maximum Term:  Five year stated final maturity.  

Repurchase Agreements (75%) 

• Must be collateralized at one hundred and two percent (102%).  

• Reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending are not permitted. 

• Maximum Term:  30 days. 

Medium-term Notes (30%): 

• Corporate securities which are rated A- or better by S & P, A3 or better by Moody’s or A- by 
Fitch or an equivalent rating by two of the three Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating 
Organizations.  

• Medium term notes must not represent more than ten percent (10%) of the issue in the case of 
a specific public offering.  Under no circumstance may any one corporate issuer represent more 
than 5% of the portfolio. 

• Maximum Term:  5 years.  

Other allowable investment categories include money market funds, mutual funds and LAIF.  LAIF is 
regulated by California Government Code (Code) Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer 
of the State of California.  Investment is also allowed in OCIP, but is limited to those funds legally 
required to be deposited in the County Treasury.  Oversight of the OCIP is performed by the County 
Treasury Oversight Committee.   

All investments are subject to a maximum maturity of five years, unless specific direction to exceed the 
limit is given by the Board and as permitted by the Code. 

OCTA policy is to invest only in high quality instruments as permitted by the Code, subject to the 
limitations of the AIP.  



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

19 

 

Outside portfolio managers must review, on an ongoing basis, the portfolios they manage (including 
bond proceeds portfolios) to ensure compliance with OCTA's diversification guidelines. 

• Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines apply to all securities except federal agencies, 
government sponsored enterprises, investment agreements, repurchase agreements and 91 Express 
Lanes Debt – any one corporation, bank, local agency, special purpose vehicle or other corporate 
name for one or more series of securities (5%).  

• Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for federal agencies, government sponsored 
enterprises and repurchase agreements – any one federal agency or government sponsored 
enterprise (35%); any one repurchase agreement counter-party name if maturity/term is < 7 days 
(50%), if maturity/term is > 7 days (35%).   

• Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for the OCTA’s 91 Express Lanes Debt – OCTA 
may purchase all or a portion of the Orange County Transportation Authority’s Toll Road Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (91 Express Lanes) Series B Bonds maturing December 15, 2030 providing the 
purchase does not exceed 25% of the Maximum Portfolio. 

Interfund Transactions 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds involving 
goods provided or services rendered and transfers of revenues from funds authorized to receive the 
revenue to funds authorized to expend it.  Outstanding interfund balances are reported as due to/from 
other funds.  Any residual balances outstanding between the Measure M program governmental 
activities and other OCTA funds are reported in the government-wide financial statements as due to 
other OCTA funds. 

OCTA allocates indirect costs related to administrative services from certain funds to benefiting funds.  
For fiscal year 2009-10, $14,281 of administrative services were charged to the OCLTA and are reported 
as general government expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Restricted Cash and Investments  

Certain proceeds of the OCLTA’s long-term debt, as well as certain resources set aside for its repayment, 
are classified as restricted cash and investments, because they are maintained in separate investment 
accounts and their use is limited by applicable debt covenants. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets include land, buildings, and machinery and equipment, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the OCLTA as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5 and a useful life exceeding one year.  Assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated 
fair value at the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of an asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. 

Freeway construction and certain purchases of right-of-way property, for which title vests with the 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), are included in capital outlay.  Infrastructure 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

20 

 

consisting primarily of freeway construction and right-of-way acquisition is not recorded as a capital asset 
in those instances where the OCLTA does not intend to maintain or operate the property when 
complete. 

Buildings and machinery and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Type Useful Life 
Buildings/Right-of-way improvements 10-30 years 
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years 

 
Assets Held for Resale  

OCLTA holds title to property in connection with the purchase of rights-of-way for infrastructure not 
held by OCLTA (see above).  These assets are reported as assets held for resale in the government-wide 
financial statements and will be sold and the proceeds reimbursed to the project that funded the 
expenditure.   

Long-Term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the statement of 
net assets.  Bond premiums and discounts and bond refunding costs, as well as issuance costs, are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and deferred bond refunding loss.  Bond 
issuance costs are reported as other assets and amortized over the life of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, in the current period.  The face amount of debt is reported as other financing 
sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts 
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from 
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Contributions to other agencies 

Contributions to other agencies primarily represent sales tax revenues received by the OCLTA disbursed 
to cities for competitive projects, the turnback program and to other agencies for projects which are in 
accordance with the Measure M ordinance. 

Net Assets 

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets represent the difference between assets and 
liabilities and are classified into two categories: 

• Invested in capital assets - This balance reflects the net assets of the OCLTA that are 
invested in capital assets.  These net assets are generally not accessible for other purposes. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

21 

 

• Restricted net assets - This balance represents net assets that are not accessible for general 
use because their use is subject to restrictions enforceable by third parties.  The government-wide 
statement of net assets reports $294,427 of net assets restricted by enabling legislation. 

Fund Balances 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts 
not available for appropriation or legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures during the reporting period.  As such, actual results could differ from those 
estimates.   

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds Balance 
Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets 

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net assets. 

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.”  The details of this $169,853 difference 
are as follows: 

Capital assets  $170,126
Less accumulated depreciation   (273) 
Net adjustment to increase fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at net assets - governmental 
activities 

 
  

$169,853 

 
Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are 
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”  The details of 
this ($82,810) difference are as follows: 

Bonds payable $ (82,795) 
Less deferred loss on refunding (to be amortized as interest expense) 336 
Plus unamortized bond issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) (351)  
Net adjustment to decrease fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at net assets - governmental 

 
$ (82,810) 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

22 

 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the 
Government-wide Statement of Activities 

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and change in net assets 
- governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.   

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation and amortization expense.”  The details of this 
$4,016 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay  $4,082 
Depreciation expense (66) 
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - 
total governmental funds to arrive at change in net assets 
- governmental activities $ 4,016 

 
Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides 
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, 
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities.”  The details of this $79,996 difference are as follows: 

Principal repayments – sales tax revenue bonds $ 78,405 
Change in accrued interest 1,635 
Amortization of deferred loss on refunding (336) 
Amortization of premium 351 
Amortization of issuance costs (59) 
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - 
total governmental funds to arrive at change in net assets 
-governmental activities 

 
 

 $79,996 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

23 

 

3. Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2010:  

Deposits $  24,617 
Investments:  
 With OCTA Commingled Investment Pool 342,543 
 With Trustee 137,542 
  Total Investments 480,085 
  
Total cash and investments $ 504,702 

Total deposits and investments are reported in the financial statements as: 

Unrestricted Cash and Investments $  431,633 
Restricted Cash and Investments:  
 Cash equivalents 44,453 
 Investments 28,616 
Total Cash and Investments $ 504,702 

As of June 30, 2010, OCLTA had the following investments: 

 
 
 
Investment 

 
 

Fair 
Value 

 
 
 

Principal 

 
 

Interest Rate 
Range 

 
 

Maturity 
Range 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Years) 

OCTA Commingled 
Investment Pool 

$342,543 $340,327 Discount  
.37%-8.875% 

7/1/10-
6/15/15 

2.13 

Money Market 71,901 71,901 Variable 7/1/10 1 Day 
U.S. Agency Notes 36,414 36,414 Discount 8/12/10 -

2/16/11 
0.60 

Investment 
Agreements 

29,227 19,956 Discount, 
3.877% 

8/15/10 -
2/15/11 

.62 

Total Investments $480,085 $468,598  

 

Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity      1.80 

Interest Rate Risk 

OCTA manages exposure to declines in fair value from increasing interest rates by having an investment 
policy that limits maturities to five years while also staggering maturities.  OCTA maintains a low 
duration strategy, targeting an estimated average portfolio duration of three years or less, with the intent 
of reducing interest rate risk.  Portfolios with low duration are less volatile, therefore, less sensitive to 
interest rate changes.  In accordance with the OCTA investment policy, amounts restricted for debt 
service reserves are invested in accordance with the maturity provision of their specific indenture, which 
may extend beyond five years. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

24 

 

As of June 30, 2010, OCLTA was a participant in OCTA’s commingled investment pool which had 
mortgage and asset-backed securities totaling $66,860.  The underlying assets are consumer receivables 
that include credit cards, auto and home loans.  The securities have a fixed interest rate and are rated 
AAA by at least two of the three Nationally Recognized Rating Services Organizations.   

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA’s commingled investment pool had the following variable rate notes: 

Investment 
Fair 

Value Coupon Multiplier 
Coupon Reset 

Date 
American Express Credit Corp $ 936 LIBOR + 170 basis points Monthly 
Bank America Corp 1,007 LIBOR + 20 basis points Quarterly 

Berkshire Hathaway Financial 600 LIBOR + 12.5 basis points Quarterly 

Citigroup Inc 423 LIBOR + 33 basis points Quarterly 

Goldman Sachs 1,005 LIBOR + 25 basis points Quarterly 

Paccar Financial Corp 629 LIBOR + 45 basis point Quarterly 

Wachovia Bank NA 1,500 LIBOR + 7 basis points Quarterly 

Total Variable Rate Notes $ 6,100   

 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party.  OCTA’s investment policy requires that a third party bank custody 
department hold all securities owned by OCTA.  All trades are settled on a delivery versus payment 
basis through OCTA’s safekeeping agent.  At June 30, 2010, OCTA did not have any securities exposed 
to custodial credit risk and there was no securities lending.   

Credit Risk 

The AIP sets minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments from any of the three nationally 
recognized rating services S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch.  For an issuer of short-term debt, the rating must be 
no less than A-1 (S&P), P-1 (Moody’s), or F-1 (Fitch), while an issuer of long-term debt shall be rated no 
less than an “A” by two of the three rating services.  LAIF and the OCTA Commingled Investment Pool 
are not rated.   



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

25 

 

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution and concentration of credit risk by 
investment type as a percentage of each pool’s fair value at June 30, 2010.  (NR means Not Rated): 

Investments S & P Moody’s Fitch % of 
OCTA Commingled Investment NR NR NR 71% 
Money Market Mutual Funds AAA Aaa NR 15% 
United States Agency Notes AAA Aaa AAA 8% 
Investment Agreements NR NR NR 6% 

Total    100% 

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA’s commingled investment pool held one investment in Lehman Brothers 
Holding Inc. Medium Term Notes.  The investment had a $1,000 par maturing on January 24, 2013.  
On September 15, 2008, Lehman Brothers Holding Inc. filed for bankruptcy.  As of June 30, 2010, the 
market value of the security was 20.25% of par. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

At June 30, 2010, OCTA did not exceed the AIP limitation that states that no more than:  

• 5% of the total market value of the pooled funds may be invested in securities of any one issuer, 
except for obligations of the United States government, U.S. government agencies or government 
sponsored enterprises, investment agreements and repurchase agreements. 

• 20% may be invested in any money market mutual fund.  

The AIP limitation excludes investment agreements pursuant to the bond indenture.  OCTA had the 
following investment agreements outstanding as of June 30, 2010: 

Investment Agreements Amount 
FSA  Capital Management Services LLC Investment Agreement $ 10,248 
U.S. Treasury Notes Coupons Components 18,979 

Total $ 29,227 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The OCTA is a voluntary participant in the Local LAIF which is regulated by the California 
Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair value of the 
OCTA’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based 
upon OCTA’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation 
to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  

4. Due From Other Governments 

Amounts due from other governments as of June 30, 2010 are $60,926 and are comprised of $42,071 of 
sales taxes, $18,279 for project reimbursements and $576 related to other miscellaneous transactions. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

26 

 

5. Related Party Transactions and Interfund Transfers 

Related party transactions: 

During fiscal year 2009-10, transfers of $2,174 from the OCLTA to OCTA were made for the fare 
stabilizations and ACCESS programs and for capital projects.  Additionally, $1,283 was transferred 
from other OCTA funds to OCLTA as contributions for program expenditures. 

Interfund Transfers: 

During fiscal year 2009-10, the LTA Fund transferred $87,428 to the LTA Debt Service Fund for debt 
service payments and the LTA Debt Service fund transferred $5,241 in excess bond reserve to the LTA 
Fund. 

6. Capital Assets      

Capital assets activity for the OCLTA Measure M governmental activities for the year ended  
June 30, 2010 was as follows: 

 Beginning 
Balance 

 
Increases 

 
Decrease

Ending 
Balance 

    Capital assets, not being depreciated:     
 Land $ 165,306 $ 4,082  $ $ 169,014 
Construction in progress held for 

Department of Transportation 
 

50 
 
- 

 
50 

 
- 

Total Measure M capital 
assets, not being 
depreciated 

 
 

$165,356 

 
 

$4,082 

 
 

$424 

 
 

$169,014 

Capital assets, being depreciated:     
Right-of-way Improvements $ 1,784 $ - $ $ 1,086 
Machinery and equipment 26 - - 26 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,810 - 698 1,112 

Less accumulated depreciation for:     
 Right-of-way Improvements (319) (59) (116) (262) 
Machinery and equipment (4) (7) - (11) 

Total accumulated depreciation (323) (66) (116) (273) 
Total Measure M  

capital assets, being  
depreciated, net 

 
 

$ 1,487 

 
 

$ (66) 

 
 

$ 582 

 
 

$ 839 

 
Depreciation expense charged to the Measure M program was $66.   



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

27 

 

7. Short-Term Debt 

On January 28, 2008, OCLTA was authorized to issue up to $400,000 in Renewed Measure M 
Subordinate Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper Notes Series A and Series B (M2 Notes).  As a requirement 
for the issuance of the M2 Notes, OCTA entered into an irrevocable direct-pay Letter of Credit and 
Reimbursement Agreement issued on a several and not joint basis with Dexia Credit Local, Bank of 
America, N.A., BNP Paribas, and JP Morgan Chase Bank, National Association as liquidity support for 
the M2 Notes.   

As of June 30, 2010, OCLTA had outstanding M2 Notes in the amount of $100,000.  Interest is 
payable on the respective maturity dates of the M2 Notes, which are the earlier of 270 days from date of 
issuance or program termination.  The maximum allowable interest rate on the M2 Notes is 12.0%.  
The average issuance rate during fiscal year 2010 was 0.36%. 

Changes in Short-Term Debt 

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows: 

 Beginning 
Balance 

 
Issued 

 
Redeemed 

Ending 
Balance 

Tax exempt commercial paper – M2 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ - $ 100,000 
Total Short-Term Debt $50,000 $ 50,000 $ - $ 100,000 

8. Long-Term Debt    

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

During fiscal years 1993, 1994 and 1998, the OCLTA issued sales tax revenue bonds to assist in the 
financing of various highway, local street and road and transit projects in Orange County.  The Measure 
M sales tax is the source of revenue for repaying this debt. 

In August 1997, the OCLTA issued $57,730 in Measure M Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds to 
advance refund $57,600 of outstanding 1992 Second Senior Bonds (1992 Second Senior Series).  The 
net proceeds plus additional 1992 Second Senior Series sinking fund moneys and release of funds from 
the Bond Reserve Fund were used to purchase U.S. government securities.  Those securities were 
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on 
the 1992 Second Senior Series.  In February 2002, the advance refunded 1992 Second Senior Bonds, 
which have been eliminated in the financial statements, were paid. 

In March 1998, the OCLTA issued $20,270 (1998 First Senior Series) in Measure M Sales Tax Revenue 
Refunding Bonds to advance refund $19,885 of outstanding 1992 First Senior Bonds (1992 First Senior 
Series).  In addition to the refunding, OCLTA also issued $213,985 (1998 Second Senior Series) in 
revenue bonds to continue with the financing of Measure M related projects.  The net proceeds plus 
additional 1992 First Senior Series sinking fund moneys were used to purchase U.S. government 
securities.  Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all 
future debt service payments on the 1992 First Senior Series.  In February 2002, the advance refunded 
1992 First Senior Bonds, which have been eliminated in the financial statements, were paid.  In 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

28 

 

February 2005, the 1998 First Senior Series Bonds, which have also been eliminated in the financial 
statements, were paid.  

In October 2001, the OCLTA issued $67,335 (2001 First Senior Series) in Measure M Sales Tax 
Revenue Refunding Bonds to advance refund $18,805 of the 1992 First Senior Bonds and $48,430 of 
the 1994 Second Senior Bonds.  The proceeds plus additional sinking fund moneys were used to 
purchase U.S. government securities.  Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1992 and 1994 bonds.  In February 
2004, the advance refunded 1992 First Senior Bonds, which have been eliminated in the financial 
statements, were paid.  In February 2004, the 2001 First Senior Series bonds, which have also been 
eliminated in the financial statements, were paid. 

A summary of the bonds outstanding is as follows: 

 1992 
1st 

Senior 
Bond 

1992 
2nd 

Senior 
Bond 

1994 
2nd 

Senior 
Bond 

1997 
2nd 

Senior 
Bond 

1998 
2nd 

Senior 
Bond 

2001 
2nd 

Senior 
Bond 

       Issuance date 08/27/92 09/18/92 02/24/94 08/15/97 03/15/98 10/15/01 
Original issue 

amount 
 

$ 350,000 
 

$ 190,000 
 

$ 200,000 
 

$ 57,730 
 

$ 213,985 
 

$ 48,430 

Original issue 
(discount)/ 

 premium 

 
 

(2,612) 

 
 

(727) 

 
 

(165) 

 
 

3,800 

 
 

11,687 

 
 

3,510 

Net bond 
proceeds 

 
$ 347,388 

 
$ 189,273 

 
$ 199,835 

 
$ 61,530 

 
$ 225,672 

 
$ 51,940 

       
Issuance costs $ 3,508 $ 2,323 $ 2,535 $ 780 $ 2,194 $ 590 
Reserve 

requirements 
 

$  - 
 

$ 14,416 
 

$ 11,406 
 

$ 2,002 
 

$ 24,581 
 

$ 6,263 

Cash reserve 
balance 

 
$ - 

 
$ 14,772 

 
$ 12,406 

 
$ 2,002 

 
$ 24,581 

 
$ 6,263 

Interest rate 2.8%-
12.23% 

2.9%-
12.03% 

2.8%-
12.55% 

3.8%-5.7% 3.9%-5.5% 4.0%-5.0% 

Annual principal 
payment 

 
$27,200 

 
$ - 

 
$ - 

 
$15,445 

 
$23,300 

 
$16,850 

Maturity 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 
Bonds 

outstanding 
 

$ 27,200 
 

$ - 
 

$ - 
 

$ 15,445 
 

$ 23,300 
 

$ 16,850 

Less deferred loss 
on refunding 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
$ (336) 

Plus unamortized 
premium 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
$ 351 

       
Total $ 27,200 $ - $ - $ 15,445 $23,300 $ 16,685 

 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

29 

 

Annual debt service requirements on the sales tax revenue bonds as of June 30, 2010, are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest 
   
2011 82,795 4,627 

   Total $ 82,795 $ 4,627  

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows: 

  

 

Beginning 

Balance 

 

 

 

Additions 

 

 

 

Reductions 

 

 

Ending 

Balance 

Due 

within 

One 

Year 
Measure M program activities:      
      
Sales tax revenue bonds $ 161,200 $  - $ 78,405 $ 82,795 $ 82,795 
Unamortized deferred loss on 

refunding 
 

(673) 
-  

(337) 
 

(336) 
 
- 

Unamortized premium 702 - 351 351 - 
Total Measure M 

program activities 
 

$161,229 
 

$  - 
 

$ 78,419 
 

$82,810 
 

$82,795 

 

Arbitrage Rebate 

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of tax-
exempt bonds after August 31, 1986.  In general, arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all 
tax-exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders.  
Failure to follow the arbitrage regulations could result in all interest paid to bondholders retroactively 
rendered taxable.   

In accordance with the arbitrage regulations, if excess earnings were calculated, 90% of the amount 
calculated would be due to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) at the end of each five year period.  The 
remaining 10% would be recorded as a liability and paid after all bonds had been redeemed.  During 
the current year, no excess earnings were calculated, therefore no payments were made. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

30 

 

Pledged Revenue 

OCLTA has a number of debt issuances outstanding that are collateralized by the pledging of certain 
revenues.  The amount and term of the remainder of these commitments are indicated in the bonds 
outstanding table found on page 28.  The purposes for which the proceeds of the related debt issuances 
were utilized are disclosed in the debt descriptions located on page 27 and page 28.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2010, debt service payments as a percentage of the pledged gross revenue net of turnback, are 
indicated in the table below: 

 

Description of 

Pledged Revenue 

 

Annual Amount 

of Pledged 

Revenue 

 

Annual Debt 

Service 

Payments 

Debt Service as 

a Percentage of 

Pledged 

Revenue 
Measure M Sales Tax $ 182,471 $  87,422 47.9% 

 

9. Commitments and Contingencies 

Purchase Commitments 

The OCLTA has various long-term outstanding contracts that extend over several years and rely on 
future years’ revenues.  Total commitments at June 30, 2010, were $649,611, the majority of which 
relate to the expansion of Orange County’s freeway and road systems. 

Federal Grants 

The OCLTA receives federal grants for capital projects and other reimbursable activities which are 
subject to audit by the grantor agency.  Although the outcome of any such audits cannot be predicted, it 
is management’s opinion that these audits would not have a material effect on the OCLTA’s financial 
position or changes in financial position. 

10. Prior Period Adjustment 

In the prior fiscal year, revenues of $1,863 for the construction of the SR-22 freeway project were 
recorded as revenue. However, the amount is considered retention and is not available for 
reimbursement until February 2011.  Therefore, this revenue should have been recorded as deferred 
revenue in the prior fiscal year as it is not available to finance current expenditures.  This impacts the 
Government Fund statements only as the revenues were earned in the previous fiscal year.  Additionally, 
in the prior fiscal year, $699 for the I-405 widening project was recorded as revenue.  However, it was 
determined in the current fiscal year that OCTA had not received the program supplement from 
Caltrans granting OCTA the authority to seek reimbursement. 

During fiscal year 2009-10, it was determined when GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Transactions, was implemented the documentation received from the State was not clear 
as to when the revenues were earned.  In the prior fiscal year, $27,757 of sales tax revenue was not 
accrued for at the end of the year.   



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(in thousands) 

 
 

31 

 

The following is a summary of the effect of these adjustments: 

  
Governmental 

Activities 

Local 
Transportation 
Authority Fund 

Beginning balance, as previously reported 487,176 $362,200 
Adjustment (SR-22 freeway project) - (1,863) 
Adjustment (Sales Tax Revenue) 27,757 27,757 
Adjustment (I-405 widening project) (699) (699) 
Beginning balance, as restated 514,234 $387,395 

 

11. Effect of New Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 51 

In June 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible 
Assets.  This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions 
be classified as capital assets.  OCLTA does not have any intangible assets. 

GASB Statement No. 53 

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 
Instruments.  This statement addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information 
regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments.  As of fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2010, OCLTA does not have any derivative instruments.   

GASB Statement No. 54  

In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions.  The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance 
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and 
by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definition.  This statement is effective for OCLTA’s 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.   

GASB Statement No. 58  

In December 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 
Bankruptcies.  This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting guidance for governments 
that have petitioned for protection from creditors by filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the 
United States Bankruptcy Code.  This statement does not apply to OCLTA. 



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

32

ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

(A C e t U t f t e O ge C t  T t t  A t t )(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

Required Supplementary InformationRequired Supplementary Information

B  C  S   LTA S  R  F  (B  B )Budgetary Comparison Schedule - LTA Special Revenue Fund (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2010Year Ended June 30, 2010

V i  i hVariance with
Budgeted Amounts Final BudgetBudgeted Amounts Final Budget

A l P i iActual Positive
( t h o u s a n d s ) Original Final Amounts (Negative)( t h o u s a n d s ) Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

l $ 4 45 $ 4 45 $ 1 55 $ (1 )Sales taxes $ 234,745                $ 234,745                $ 221,855               $ (12,890)                 $ 4,74 $ 4,74 $ , $ ( , 9 )

Contributions from other agencies 8 250                    8 250                    31 269                 23 019                  Contributions from other agencies 8,250                    8,250                    31,269                 23,019                  

Interest 10,012                  10,012                  12,219                 2,207                    Interest 10,012                  10,012                  12,219                 2,207                    

Capital assistance grants 64 098                  64 098                                         (64 098)                 Capital assistance grants 64,098                  64,098                  -                       (64,098)                 

Miscellaneous 2,379                    2,379                    3,117                   738                       Miscellaneous 2,379                    2,379                    3,117                   738                       #
Total revenues 319,484                319,484                268,460               (51,024)                 Total revenues 319,484                319,484                268,460               (51,024)                 

Expenditures:Expenditures:

Current:Current:

G l 113 494                119 136                65 459                 53 677                  General government 113,494                119,136                65,459                 53,677                  g , , , ,

Transportation:Transportation:

C b   h  l l 332 040                329 353                193 355               135 998                Contributions to other local agencies 332,040                329,353                193,355               135,998                g , 4 , , ,

Capital outlay 271 025                270 962                54 302                 216 660                Capital outlay 271,025                270,962                54,302                 216,660                

Debt service:Debt service:

Interest on long term debt and Interest on long-term debt and 

commercial paper 1,500                    1,500                    403                      1,097                    commercial paper 1,500                    1,500                    403                      1,097                    

Total expenditures 718 059                720 951                313 519               407 432                Total expenditures 718,059                720,951                313,519               407,432                

Excess (deficiency) of revenuesExcess (deficiency) of revenues

    over (under) expenditures (398,575)               (401,467)               (45,059)                356,408                    over (under) expenditures (398,575)               (401,467)               (45,059)                356,408                

Other financing sources (uses):Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in -                        -                        5 241                   5 241                    Transfers in -                        -                        5,241                   5,241                    

f  f  OC A 1 650                    1 650                    1 283                   (36 )                      Transfers from OCTA 1,650                    1,650                    1,283                   (367)                      , , , ( 7)

Transfers out (87 404)                 (87 404)                 (87 428)                (24)                        Transfers out (87,404)                 (87,404)                 (87,428)                (24)                        

Transfers to OCTA (2,212)                   (2,212)                   (2,174)                  38                         Transfers to OCTA (2,212)                   (2,212)                   (2,174)                  38                         

Total other financingTotal other financing

(87 966)                 (87 966)                 (83 078)                4 888                    sources (uses) (87,966)                 (87,966)                 (83,078)                4,888                    ( ) ( , ) ( , ) ( , ) ,

Net change in fund balances $ (486 541)               $ (489 433)               $ (128 137)              $ 361 296                Net change in fund balances $ (486,541)               $ (489,433)               $ (128,137)              $ 361,296                

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary informationSee accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.

32



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority) 

 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

 
June 30, 2010 

(in thousands) 

 

 33

1. Budgetary Data 

 
The OCLTA establishes accounting control through formal adoption of an annual operating budget for 
the LTA special revenue and the debt service governmental funds. The operating budget is prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) except for multi-
year contracts, for which the entire amount of the contract is budgeted and encumbered in the year of 
execution.  The adopted budget can be amended by the Board to increase both appropriations and 
estimated revenues as unforeseen circumstances come to management’s attention.  Budgeted expenditure 
amounts represent original appropriations adjusted for supplemental appropriations during the year.  
Division heads are authorized to approve appropriation transfers within major objects.  Major objects are 
defined as Salaries and Benefits, Supplies and Services and Capital Outlay.  Appropriation transfers 
between major objects require approval of the Board.  Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control, 
that is the level that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations, for budgeted funds, is at the major 
object level for the budgeted governmental funds.  A Fourth Quarter Budget Status Report, June 2010 is 
available from the OCTA Finance and Administration Division.  With the exception of accounts which 
have been encumbered, appropriations lapse at year end. 

 

 



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

34

ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

(A C e t U t f t e O ge C t  T t t  A t t )(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority)

Other Supplementary InformationOther Supplementary Information

B  C  S   LTA D  S  F  (B  B )Budgetary Comparison Schedule - LTA Debt Service Fund (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2010Year Ended June 30, 2010

V i  i hVariance with
Budgeted Amounts Final BudgetBudgeted Amounts Final Budget

A l P i iActual Positive
( t h o u s a n d s ) Original Final Amounts (Negative)( t h o u s a n d s ) Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

$ $ $ $ (1 4 )Interest $ 2,203                    $ 2,203                    $ 783                      $ (1,420)                   $ , $ , $ 7 $ ( ,4 )#
Total revenues 2,203                    2,203                    783                      (1,420)                   Total revenues 2,203                    2,203                    783                      (1,420)                   

Expenditures:E e e

Current:Current:

General government 298                       298                       151                      147                       General government 298                       298                       151                      147                       

Debt service:Debt service:

P i i l t   l t  d bt 78 405                  78 405                  78 405                                         Principal payments on long-term debt 78,405                  78,405                  78,405                 -                        

Interest on long-term debt and Interest on long-term debt and 

i l 9 000                    9 000                    9 018                   (18)                        commercial paper 9,000                    9,000                    9,018                   (18)                        p p , , ,

Total expenditures 87,703                  87,703                  87,574                 129                       Total expenditures 87,703                  87,703                  87,574                 129                       

Excess (deficiency) of revenuesExcess (deficiency) of revenues

     ( d ) di (85 500)                 (85 500)                 (86 791)                (1 291)                       over (under) expenditures (85,500)                 (85,500)                 (86,791)                (1,291)                   p

Other financing sources (uses):( )

Transfers in 87,405                  87,405                  87,428                 23                         Transfers in 87,405                  87,405                  87,428                 23                         

Transfers out                                                 (5 241)                  (5 241)                   Transfers out -                        -                        (5,241)                  (5,241)                   

T   Total other financing

sources (uses) 87 405                  87 405                  82 187                 (5 218)                   sources (uses) 87,405                  87,405                  82,187                 (5,218)                   

Net change in fund balances $ 1,905                    $ 1,905                    $ (4,604)                  $ (6,509)                   Net change in fund balances $ 1,905                    $ 1,905                    $ (4,604)                  $ (6,509)                   

34



35 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of 
the Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), a component unit of the Orange 
County Transportation Authority (Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which 
collectively comprise the OCLTA’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 27, 2010.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 
 
 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the OCLTA’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the OCLTA’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the OCLTA’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the OCLTA’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily disclose all 
deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 



 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 

 

36 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the OCLTA’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
management of the OCLTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
Irvine, California 
October 27, 2010 
 





















































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance and Administration Committee  
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered 
OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  The following matter conforms to this definition: 
 
(1) Need to Improve Controls Over Grant Accruals 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Finance and Administration Division 
determined that one prior year grant accrual was not collected during the availability 
period established by OCTA for revenue recognition purposes. Although the expected 
collection date was communicated, we noted that the accounts receivable section was 
unaware of OCTA’s revenue recognition policy which requires that revenues collected 
subsequent to OCTA’s availability period be deferred. Accordingly, the financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2010 reflected an adjustment to reassign this 
grant revenue to the appropriate period in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The Finance and Administration Division has implemented 
procedures to reduce the likelihood of this occurring in the future. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
Finance and Administration Committee 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 

 
 

(1) Need to Improve Controls Over Grant Accruals (Continued) 

 

Recommendation 

 
We recommend that management provide additional training to ensure staff are aware 
of OCTA’s availability period and procedures for deferring revenues. 

 
 Management’s Response Regarding Corrective Action Taken or Planned 

 
The availability period for revenue recognition will be changed from 180 to 90 days.  
This change will allow revenues to be verified as current or deferred prior to 
completion of the audit.  Additionally, the availability period has been reviewed with the 
accounts receivable section so that they understand the proper classification of 
revenues at year end. 

 
OCTA’s written response to the matter communicated herein has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on it.  
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, those 
charged with governance, others within the organization, and agencies that provided federal 
financial assistance to OCTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
Irvine, California 
October 27, 2010 
 
 
 
  
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 27, 2010 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Will Kempton, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Local Transportation Authority Measure M 

Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports, Year Ended June 30, 2009 
 
 
Overview 
 
Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C., an independent accounting firm, has completed 
its annual agreed-upon procedures for eight Orange County cities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. These procedures were developed by the 
Taxpayers Oversight Committee of the Orange County Local Transportation 
Authority to assist them in evaluating the selected cities’ level of compliance 
with provisions of Measure M Local Transportation Ordinance No. 2.   
 
Recommendations  
 
A. Receive and file the Orange County Local Transportation Authority 

Measure M Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports, Year Ended 
June 30, 2008. 
 

B. Direct staff to monitor implementation of recommendations related to 
timely expenditure of turnback funds, indirect cost allocations and 
inclusion of Measure M projects in city Capital Improvement Programs. 

 
Background 
 
Annually, the Audit Subcommittee of the Taxpayers Oversight Committee 
(Committee) selects a sample of cities receiving Measure M turnback funding 
for an evaluation of the cities’ level of compliance with provisions of the 
Measure M Local Transportation Ordinance No. 2 (Ordinance). The selection 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, was based, in part, on risks identified 
through questionnaires, management letters, and single audit reports collected 
from all 34 Orange County cities. A total of eight cities were selected by the 
Committee for agreed-upon procedures. These procedures are developed by 
the Committee.  
 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority Measure M 
Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports, Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Page 2

 

 

Discussion 
 
Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C. (MHM or auditors) conducted the agreed-upon 
procedures, including site visits to each of the selected cities and interviews of 
city Finance Department and Public Works Department staff. Procedures also 
included review of the cities’ maintenance of effort (MOE) calculation and 
sample testing of the underlying expenditures to ensure that they met the 
definition of local street and road expenditures. The auditors also tested a 
sample of Measure M turnback expenditures to ensure they were related to 
projects listed in the cities’ current year Seven Year Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP). Other procedures, related to indirect costs, interest earnings, 
and timing of expenditures were performed. 
 
The auditors recommended the City of Orange reimburse its turnback fund for 
expenditures totaling $130,430 that related to landscape maintenance costs 
and furniture, machinery, and equipment costs that were not included in the 
city’s CIP. The city responded that it believed the costs were eligible 
maintenance expenditures and would be submitting an amended CIP for 
fiscal year 2008-09 to OCTA for consideration of approval. 
 
The City of Garden Grove was found to have not spent its turnback funds 
within three years as required by the Ordinance. The city’s turnback fund had a 
balance of $8.95 million and the total of the prior three years’ payments to the 
city was $5.6 million. The auditors recommended the city request an approval 
for an extension of time as allowed by the Ordinance. The city responded that 
the delay in spending the funds was related to a lengthy right-of-way 
acquisition process and that a request for extension would be submitted. 
 
The City of Newport Beach charged $8.4 million in indirect costs as part of its 
MOE expenditures. The auditors found that the city’s allocation is based on 
estimates prepared during fiscal year 2002-03 and that the allocation 
computation included internal service fund expenditures twice. The auditors 
recommended that the city correct the computational error and perform 
timesheet review or time studies to ensure allocation percentages remain 
accurate. The city concurred and indicated that corrective action would be 
implemented for fiscal year 2009-10. While the level of indirect charges is 
significant, the city’s MOE requirement is only $7 million and the city charged a 
total of $15 million in MOE expenditures. As such, the auditors did not question 
that the MOE requirement was met. 
 
Agreed-upon procedures performed for three cities: Aliso Viejo, Garden Grove, 
and  Seal Beach, identified some turnback expenditures that were not included 
in the cities’ CIP for fiscal year 2008-09. The expenditures, totaling $499,006 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority Measure M 
Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports, Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Page 3

 

 

for the City of Aliso Viejo, $465,719 for the City of Garden Grove, and $33,225 
for the City of Seal Beach, were in the cities’ CIP for fiscal year 2007-08.  
Because the Ordinance does not specify whether expenditures must be 
included in the CIP in each year in which expenditures are incurred, MHM 
recommended that the cities submit revised CIP’s for fiscal year 2008-09. This 
recommendation is consistent with prior years’ recommendations. 
 
Summary 
 
Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C., an independent accounting firm, has completed 
its annual agreed-upon procedures reviews of ten selected cities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Recommendations have been made to 
ensure that Measure M expenditures are consistent with Measure M Ordinance 
requirements. Cities have proposed corrective action to address auditor 
recommendations. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Orange County Local Transportation Authority Measure M Agreed-Upon 

Procedures Reports, Year Ended June 30, 2009 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by:  

 
 
 

Kathleen M. O’Connell  
Executive Director, Internal Audit 
(714) 560-5669 

 

 



tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A

























































































 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 27, 2010 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee  
 
From: Will Kempton, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Financial and Compliance Audits of Eight Combined 

Transportation Funding Program Projects 
 
 
Overview 
 
Audits have been completed of eight projects funded through the Combined 
Transportation Funding Program of Measure M by external audit firm Mayer 
Hoffman McCann P.C. Recommendations have been offered to ensure 
compliance with the Combined Transportation Funding Program Guidelines.  
The auditors also questioned expenditures of $84,417 and $11,868  invoiced 
by the cities of Stanton and Westminster, respectively, for inadequately 
supported expenditures. While the cities indicate that there is sufficient 
evidence of project completion, that evidence does not meet program 
requirements.  Therefore, the Internal Audit Department is recommending that 
the Orange County Transportation Authority seek reimbursement of these 
amounts. In the process of seeking reimbursement, staff will work with these 
jurisdictions to determine if there is any way within the Combined 
Transportation Funding Program to substantiate the expenditures in question. 
 
Recommendations  
 
A. Receive and file financial and compliance audits of eight Combined 

Transportation Funding Program projects, Internal Audit Report 08-019. 
 
B. Direct staff to seek reimbursement from the City of Stanton, in the 

amount of $84,417, and from the City of Westminster, in the amount of 
$11,868, for expenditures invoiced under the Combined Transportation 
Funding Program but inadequately supported. 

 
C. Direct Orange County Transportation Authority staff to implement 

recommendations related to jurisdictions’ submission of final reports 
within 180 days of project completion and clarification of allowable 
overhead cost allocations. 

 



Financial and Compliance Audits of Eight Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Projects 

Page 2

 

 

D. Direct Orange County Transportation Authority staff to enhance final 
project review procedures to include additional scrutiny of possible 
excess right of way.  

 
Background 
 
The Combined Transportation Funding Program (CTFP) was created by the 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) to provide local 
agencies with a common set of guidelines (CTFP Guidelines) and project 
selection criteria for a variety of funding programs.  To participate in the CTFP, 
an agency must have been found eligible to receive Measure M “turnback” 
funds. 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) issues a CTFP “call for 
projects” on a biennial basis to all eligible local agencies, at which time 
agencies are required to submit an application to OCTA to receive funding.  
OCTA reviews and ranks each application using evaluation criteria developed 
for each program.  OCTA’s Board of Directors approves projects and funding 
allocations. 
 
In 2005, OCTA’s Internal Audit Department (Internal Audit) conducted the first 
audits of projects funded by CTFP. Specifically, Internal Audit selected 15 
projects and engaged three contract audit firms to perform the audits.  The 
audits found that agencies receiving CTFP funding generally complied with the 
CTFP Guidelines. However, recommendations were made to resolve 
ambiguities in the CTFP Guidelines and to implement other controls to ensure 
that the CTFP Guidelines were followed and required documentation submitted 
by the local agencies was complete and accurate. 
 
The Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Internal Audit Plan Audit included CTFP project 
audits. Through a competitive procurement process, Internal Audit engaged 
external audit firm Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C. (MHM) to conduct audits of 
eight completed projects.  The audits were recently completed. 
 
Discussion 
 
Selection of Projects 
 
Internal Audit obtained from OCTA’s Development Division an unaudited 
ledger of all CTFP projects closed out during fiscal year 2007-08.  From this 
population, Internal Audit selected eight projects for audit.  The first selection 
criteria included all projects greater than $750,000 to ensure adequate 
coverage of significant projects across the applicable 21 jurisdictions.  One 



Financial and Compliance Audits of Eight Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Projects 

Page 3

 

 

project from this initial selection was eliminated because the jurisdiction, the 
City of Orange, had two projects that met the criteria.  
 
The second selection criteria was designed to ensure a variety of project 
categories under the CTFP were represented. The CTFP categories include 
programs such as the Intersection Improvement Program (IIP), the Signal 
Improvement Program (SIP), and others. In total, five of the six project 
categories were represented in the sample.  No project was selected from the 
Transportation Demand Management Program category due to immateriality. 
Finally, Internal Audit randomly selected one additional jurisdiction not selected 
under the first two criteria to expand coverage.  A summary of the selected 
projects and audit results can be found at Attachment A. 
 
Statistics for the population of projects closed and the sample selected for audit 
are as follows: 
 
Total costs of projects closed during fiscal year 2007-08:   $32,978,263 
Total costs of projects selected for audit: 19,988,982 
Percentage of total closed project costs selected for audit: 61% 
 
Total number of projects closed during fiscal year 2007-08: 71 
Total number of projects selected for audit: 8 
 
Audit Objectives 
 
The primary objective of the audits was to ensure compliance with CTFP 
Guidelines and verify that project records and documentation supported the 
amounts invoiced to OCTA. A secondary objective of the audits was to ensure 
that policies, procedures, and processes of the OCTA are in place and 
operating effectively to promote compliance with the Ordinance. 
 
Audit Findings and Recommendations  
 
Auditors MHM identified issues both with CTFP projects and OCTA 
administration.  A summary of the findings for the jurisdictions audited can be 
found at Attachment A, and the detailed audit reports can be found in 
Attachments B through H.  The auditor’s recommendations for OCTA can be 
found at Attachment I. 
 
Two jurisdictions did not have sufficient documentation to support 
expenditures. CTFP Guidelines require that documents supporting 
expenditures be retained for five years following project completion.  The City 
of Stanton began its project in fiscal year 1999-00, completed it in 2001-02, but 



Financial and Compliance Audits of Eight Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Projects 

Page 4

 

 

did not submit the final report until fiscal year 2007-08.  Between 1999 and this 
2009 audit, the city destroyed pertinent records. As a result, auditors 
questioned all expenditures and Internal Audit is recommending that OCTA 
seek reimbursement of $84,417 of CTFP funding from the City of Stanton. The 
City of Stanton maintains that while records are unavailable, there is obvious 
evidence of project completion. 
 
Similarly, the City of Westminster was unable to produce detailed timesheets to 
support labor charges for its project which began in fiscal year 1999-00 and for 
which a final report was submitted to OCTA in fiscal year 2007-08. Auditors 
questioned $11,868 of labor costs and associated overhead.  Internal Audit is 
recommending that OCTA seek reimbursement of $11,868 from the City of 
Westminster. The City of Westminster maintains that summary records of time 
incurred and charged to the project is adequate evidence. 
 
Three jurisdictions were found to have submitted final project reports more than 
180 days following project completion. Auditors recommended that cities’ 
establish procedures to ensure timely filing of final reports.  The City of Orange 
took exception to this recommendation, indicating that because of delayed 
payment approval by OCTA the final report was not submitted timely.  OCTA 
management indicated that the final report submission deadline is independent 
of the reimbursement cycle and Internal Audit agrees. 
 
Auditors also found, through discussion with OCTA Development Division staff, 
that the disposition of a remnant piece of property purchased by the City of 
Lake Forest for its transportation project was not negotiated with OCTA as 
required by CTFP Guidelines. The City of Lake Forest, in its final project report, 
did not declare the excess right-of-way but had used it for aesthetic 
improvements and landscaping. The City of Lake Forest disputed the auditor’s 
finding, indicating that semi-annual project update information provided to 
OCTA represented sufficient communication as to excess right-of-way.  
Internal Audit has reviewed the documentation provided to the auditor and has 
determined that it did not reflect right-of-way status or discussions with OCTA 
about disposition. 
 
During 2009, OCTA’s Development Division initiated a review of certain CTFP 
projects and identified the City of Lake Forest’s project as one with unreported 
excess right-of-way.  Staff met with the City of Lake Forest in December 2009 
and came to agreement that the excess was an uneconomic remnant.  Internal 
Audit recommends that OCTA’s Development Division develop enhanced 
procedures for ongoing monitoring of possible excess right-of-way. 
 



Financial and Compliance Audits of Eight Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Projects 

Page 5

 

 

In addition to findings and recommendations related to jurisdictions’ 
compliance with the CTFP Guidelines, MHM has made two recommendations 
related to OCTA’s administration of the program (Attachment I).  First, the 
auditors recommended that OCTA ensure that final project reports are 
submitted within the required 180 days. Management responded that the CTFP 
Guidelines offer no punitive consequences. As a result, OCTA’s Chief 
Executive Officer sent reminder letters to all agencies with delinquent reports.  
Management also indicated that punitive language is being added to the 
guidelines for Measure M2. 
 
Auditors also found unclear language in the CTFP Guidelines with regard to 
overhead charges. The CTFP Guidelines indicate that cities may charge 
overhead “at allowable rate(s) up to 30% of payroll and fringe benefits…”  The 
auditors recommended that OCTA clarify this language to indicate that the 
overhead rate should be the actual overhead rate, not to exceed 30 percent of 
salaries and fringe benefits.  Management responded that the Renewed 
Measure M guidelines will include clarifying language. 
 
Summary 
 
Audits have been completed of eight CTFP projects funded by Measure M.  
External auditors MHM have provided recommendations related to both the 
jurisdictions’ compliance with the Ordinance, as well as recommendations to 
improve OCTA’s administration of CTFP projects. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority Combined Transportation 

Funding Program Summary of Project Audit Results 
B. City of Stanton, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 

Transportation Funding Program Project Number 99-STAN-SIP-1192 
Cerritos Avenue/Western Avenue Traffic Signal Project For the Period 
September 12, 2000 through September 19, 2007 

C. City of Westminster, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Project Number 00-WEST-GMA-3198 
Intelligent Transportation Project (Phase III) For the Period August 9, 2002 
through October 24, 2007 

D. City of Orange, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Project Number 00-ORNG-IIP-3141 
Chapman Avenue & Prospect Street Intersection Improvement Project 
For the Period June 24, 2003 through January 30, 2008 

E. City of Lake Forest, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Project Number 03-LFOR-MPH-1171 



Financial and Compliance Audits of Eight Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Projects 

Page 6

 

 

Widening and Improvement of El Toro Road: Interstate 5 to Jutewood 
Place/Cornelius Drive For the Period August 19, 2003 through June 4, 2008 

F. City of San Clemente, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Project Number 99-SCLM-MPH-2004 
Improvement of Avenida La Pata Extension For the Period 
February 27, 2002 through August 8, 2007 

G. County of Orange, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Program Numbers 96-SNTA-GMA-1047 
and 00-ORCO-MPAH-3049 Warner Avenue Bridge Widening Project For 
the Period November 22, 2006 through May 21, 2008 

H. City of Irvine, California Closeout Audit of Costs Claimed Combined 
Transportation Funding Program Project Number 99-IRVN-RIP-1104 
Improvement to Interchange at Jeffery Road & Interstate 405 Project For 
the Period January 20, 2005 through September 12, 2007 

I. January 12, 2010 letter from Mayer Hoffman McCann to 
Kathleen M. O’Connell 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by:  

 
 
 

Kathleen M. O’Connell  
Executive Director, Internal Audit 
(714) 560-5669 

 
 

 



 ATTACHMENT A 

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COMBINED TRANSPORTATION FUNDING PROGRAM 

SUMMARY OF PROJECT AUDIT RESULTS 
 

 
 

Jurisdiction 

 
Project # / 

Description 

 
CTFP 

Funding 

 
 

Findings 

 
 

Recommendations 
     
Stanton 99-STAN-SIP-1192 $84,417 City did not retain 

documentation supporting 
any invoices. Auditors 
questioned all costs, or 
$84,417 

Seek reimbursement of 
$84,417. 

Westminster 00-WEST-SIP-3198   221,744 City did not maintain 
timesheets to support labor 
and overhead costs claimed.  
Auditors questioned salaries 
of $9,086 and associated 
overhead of $2,782. 

Seek reimbursement of 
$11,868. 

Orange 00-ORNG-IIP-3141 943,376 The city did not submit the 
final project report to OCTA 
within 180 days of project 
completion. 

The city should implement 
procedures to ensure timely 
submission of final project 
reports. 

Lake Forest 03-LFOR-MPH-1171 13,707,215 Final report submitted by city 
contained errors, none of 
which affected CTFP 
funding.   
 
In addition, excess right-of-
way purchased for the 
improvements were not used 
for transportation purposes 
and the city did not advise 
OCTA of this so that the 
parties could come to 
agreement on disposition. 

City and OCTA should enter 
into negotiations for final 
disposition of excess right-of-
way.  Matter was resolved on 
December 7, 2009. 
 
OCTA should develop 
enhanced procedures for 
ongoing monitoring of 
possible excess right of way.  

San Clemente 99-SCLM-MPH-2004 1,044,484 The city did not submit the 
final project report to OCTA 
within 180 days of project 
completion. 

The city should implement 
procedures to ensure timely 
submission of final project 
report. 

Irvine 99-IRVN-RIP-1104 2,916,879 Final report submitted by city 
contained errors, none of 
which affected CTFP 
funding.   

None. 

County of Orange 
(on behalf of Santa 
Ana) 

96-SNTA-GMA-1047 550,000 None. None. 

County of Orange 00-ORCO-MPAH-3049 1,377,028 None. None. 
     
TOTAL  $19,988,982  

 



tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B























tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT C





















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT D



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT E





















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT F



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT G



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT H



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT I







 ATTACHMENT A 

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COMBINED TRANSPORTATION FUNDING PROGRAM 

SUMMARY OF PROJECT AUDIT RESULTS 
 

 
 

Jurisdiction 

 
Project # / 

Description 

 
CTFP 

Funding 

 
 

Findings 

 
 

Recommendations 
     
Stanton 99-STAN-SIP-1192 $84,417 City did not retain 

documentation supporting 
any invoices. Auditors 
questioned all costs, or 
$84,417 

Seek reimbursement of 
$84,417. 

Westminster 00-WEST-SIP-3198   221,744 City did not maintain 
timesheets to support labor 
and overhead costs claimed.  
Auditors questioned salaries 
of $9,086 and associated 
overhead of $2,782. 

Seek reimbursement of 
$11,868. 

Orange 00-ORNG-IIP-3141 943,376 The city did not submit the 
final project report to OCTA 
within 180 days of project 
completion. 

The city should implement 
procedures to ensure timely 
submission of final project 
reports. 

Lake Forest 03-LFOR-MPH-1171 13,707,215 Final report submitted by city 
contained errors, none of 
which affected CTFP 
funding.   
 
In addition, excess right-of-
way purchased for the 
improvements were not used 
for transportation purposes 
and the city did not advise 
OCTA of this so that the 
parties could come to 
agreement on disposition. 

City and OCTA should enter 
into negotiations for final 
disposition of excess right-of-
way.  Matter was resolved on 
December 7, 2009. 
 
OCTA should develop 
enhanced procedures for 
ongoing monitoring of 
possible excess right of way.  

San Clemente 99-SCLM-MPH-2004 1,044,484 The city did not submit the 
final project report to OCTA 
within 180 days of project 
completion. 

The city should implement 
procedures to ensure timely 
submission of final project 
report. 

Irvine 99-IRVN-RIP-1104 2,916,879 Final report submitted by city 
contained errors, none of 
which affected CTFP 
funding.   

None. 

County of Orange 
(on behalf of Santa 
Ana) 

96-SNTA-GMA-1047 550,000 None. None. 

County of Orange 00-ORCO-MPAH-3049 1,377,028 None. None. 
     
TOTAL  $19,988,982  

 



tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B























tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT C





















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT D



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT E





















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT F



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT G



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT H



















tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT I






	January 26, 2010
	Agenda for 01.26.10
	AGENDA
	Tuesday, January 26, 2010
	600 S. Main Street, Orange, CA

	Minutes from 12.08.09

	OCLTA Financial Statements 10-27-10
	OCLTA Debt Service Coverage Tests 10-27-10
	OCLTA Measure M1 Status Report
	OCLTA Measure M2 Status Report
	OCLTA Gann Limit Report 10-27-10
	Management Letter
	Orange County Local Transportation Authority Measure M Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports, Year Ended June 30, 2009
	Attachment A
	Document.pdf
	Aliso Viejo Measure M 12-23-09
	Anaheim Measure M 1-7-10
	Revised County MM 1-13-10
	Dana Point Measure M 12-23-09
	Garden Grove MM 1-7-2010
	Newport Beach MM 1-7-10 (2)
	City of Orange 1-11-10
	Seal Beach Measure M12-30-09

	Financial & Compliance Audits of Costs Claimed Under Eight CTFP Projects
	Financial & Compliance Audits of Costs Claimed Under Eight CTFP Projects.pdf
	8024_Attachment A.pdf
	8024_Attachment B.pdf
	8024_Attachment C.pdf
	8024_Attachment D.pdf
	8024_Attachment E.pdf
	8024_Attachment F.pdf
	8024_Attachment G.pdf
	8024_Attachment H.pdf
	8024_Attachment I.pdf

	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I



